### **RiaSTAP®**

Human Fibrinogen, powder for injection.

#### **Consumer Medicine Information**

### What is in this leaflet

This leaflet answers some common questions about RiaSTAP®.

It does not contain all the available information. If you require further information about this medicine or your treatment generally, or if you have any questions or are not sure about something in this leaflet, consult your doctor.

All medicines have benefits and risks. Your doctor has weighed the benefits that RiaSTAP® will have for you against the possible risks.

If you have any concerns about taking this medicine, ask your doctor. Follow your doctor's advice even if it is different from what this leaflet says.

### Keep this leaflet with the medicine.

You may need to read it again.

The information in this leaflet is subject to change.

Please check with your doctor whether there is any new information about this medicine that you should know since you were last treated.

### What RiaSTAP® is used for

This medicine is used for the treatment of acute bleeding in people with an absence or low level of human fibrinogen (congenital lack of fibrinogen).

Ask your doctor if you have any questions about why RiaSTAP® has been prescribed for you.

#### How RiaSTAP® works

This product is made from human plasma (this is the liquid part of the blood). It contains human fibrinogen as the active ingredient. Human fibrinogen is a protein which is important for blood clotting (coagulation). If you have missing or malfunctioning fibrinogen the blood does not clot as quickly as it should which results in an increased tendency of bleeding. The replacement of human fibrinogen with RiaSTAP® will repair the coagulation mechanisms.

### Before you are given RiaSTAP®

When you must not have it

### Do not have RiaSTAP® if you are allergic to:

- human fibrinogen
- any of the ingredients listed at the end of this leaflet.

If you are not sure whether you should be given this medicine, talk to your doctor.

### Before you are given it

### Tell your doctor if you:

- have had a heart attack (a history of coronary heart disease or myocardial infarction)
- · have just had surgery
- suffer from liver disease
- will have surgery soon
- are more likely to suffer from blood clots than normal.

### Tell your doctor if you are pregnant or breast feeding.

This medicine should only be used if clearly needed during pregnancy or breast feeding.

### Tell your doctor if you are on a controlled sodium diet.

This medicine contains sodium which should be taken into consideration.

Tell your doctor if you are allergic to any medicine or food.

## If you have not told your doctor about any of the above, tell them before you are given RiaSTAP®.

Your doctor can discuss with you the risks and benefits involved with using this medicine.

#### About blood products

This product is made from human plasma (this is the liquid part of blood). When products are made from human blood or plasma and injected into you, it is possible that viruses or other substances could be present in the product and cause an illness. These could be viruses such as hepatitis, human immunodeficiency virus (HIV), or parvovirus B19. There could also be other infectious agents some of which may not yet have been discovered.

To reduce the risk of infection extra steps are taken when manufacturing this product. Strict controls are applied when selecting blood donors and donations. The product is specially treated to kill and remove viruses. These special treatments are considered effective against certain viruses known as enveloped viruses (such as HIV and hepatitis B and C) and also for the non-enveloped virus hepatitis A.

The measures taken may be of limited value against non-enveloped viruses such as parvovirus B19. Despite these measures, the risk of transmitting infection cannot be totally eliminated.

Vaccines are available against some of these viruses and your doctor will be able to help you decide whether you should have any of those vaccines.

Please discuss the risks and benefits of this medicine with your doctor.

#### Taking other medicines

Tell your doctor if you are taking any other medicines, including medicines that you buy without a prescription from your pharmacy, supermarket or health food shop.

Some medicines may affect the way other medicines work.

### How to use RiaSTAP®

Treatment should be started and supervised by a doctor. RiaSTAP® is reconstituted with 50 mL of Water for Injections and then administered by slow intravenous injection.

Do not mix RiaSTAP® with other medicinal products or diluents either before or during administration.

If it is not injected immediately it must be stored below 25°C and used within 6 hours of reconstitution. The reconstituted solution should not be stored in the refrigerator.

Any unused portion remaining in the vial must be discarded appropriately.

Every time you are given RiaSTAP®, the date of injection, the batch number and the injected volume should be recorded.

#### How much is given

The dose and duration of administration of RiaSTAP® depends on the severity of your fibrinogen deficiency and the location and extent of your bleeding.

As some patients may have an increased risk of blood clotting (thrombosis) the use of RiaSTAP® should only be given by doctors experienced in this treatment.

#### When it is given

Your doctor will discuss with you when you should be given RiaSTAP®.

### If too much is given (overdose)

Overdose may enhance the risk of blood clots (thrombosis). Your doctor should regularly check your clotting status during your treatment.

If you have any questions consult your doctor.

### While you are having RiaSTAP®

#### Things you must do

If you notice signs or symptoms of a serious allergy or anaphylaxis (see Side effects) while you are being given RiaSTAP® tell your doctor immediately as the administration of RiaSTAP® should be stopped immediately.

#### Things you must not do

Do not give or share your medicine with anyone else, even if they have the same condition as you.

Use this medicine in one patient on one occasion only.

### Side effects

# Tell your doctor as soon as possible if you do not feel well while you are being given RiaSTAP®.

This medicine helps most people with congenital fibrinogen deficiency who suffer a bleeding episode, but it may have unwanted side effects in a few people. All medicines can have side effects. Sometimes they are serious, most of the time they are not. You may need medical treatment if you get some of the side effects.

Tell your doctor immediately if you notice any of the following symptoms which may be signs of allergy as the injection of RiaSTAP® should be stopped:

- feeling faint (fall in blood pressure)
- reddening of the skin
- rash
- difficulty in breathing
- dizziness
- itching
- · shortness of breath.

### Tell your doctor if you notice the following and it worries you:

• fever

This is the most common side effect of RiaSTAP®.

There is a risk of blood clots forming in blood vessels (thrombosis) particularly when high or repeated doses are given. The use of RiaSTAP® should only be given by experienced doctors.

Other side effects not listed above may also occur in some patients. Tell your doctor if you notice any other effects.

### Do not be alarmed by this list of possible side effects.

This medicine does not generally cause any undesired reactions.

### After having RiaSTAP®

#### Storing RiaSTAP®

Keep RiaSTAP® in a cool dry place where the temperature stays below 25°C. Do not freeze. Keep the product in the carton in order to protect it from light.

Do not use after the expiry date.

Keep it out of the reach and sight of children.

#### Manufacturer

RiaSTAP® is manufactured by CSL Behring GmbH, Germany

### Date of most recent amendment

July 2017

Australian Register Number: AUST R 162828

® Registered trademark of CSL Limited Group of Companies

### Product description

#### What it looks like

RiaSTAP® is a white powder contained in a glass vial.

RiaSTAP® comes in a carton which also contains:

- one vial of 50 mL Water for Injections
- · one transfer set.

After reconstitution with 50 mL of Water for Injections the made up solution should be clear or slightly opalescent, that is it might sparkle when held up to the light but must not contain any obvious particles.

#### Ingredients

RiaSTAP® contains 1 gram of human fibrinogen as the active ingredient.

It also contains:

- albumin
- arginine hydrochloride
- sodium chloride
- · sodium citrate.

#### Distributor

CSL Behring (Australia) Pty Ltd ABN 48 160 734 761 189-209 Camp Road Broadmeadows VIC 3047 Australia